Pre-solicitation Conference Questions and Answers

Note:  In the event of any inconsistency between data provided in this document and the Final RFP, the language in the Final RFP, including any amendments, will govern. 

1.
What kind of accounting system is considered adequate?  (ie name of systems that are recommended)

A:
DCAA audits accounting systems and provides their findings to DCMA who determines whether vendors systems are "adequate" based on the DCAA audit findings. An adequate accounting system is one that is DCMA approved to track costs incurred under the contract.  There are no recommended systems, however, the offeror shall identify the status of all business systems, which require Government acceptance or approval (as applicable). 
2.
Any security requirement necessary for personnel?  Do employees have to 
have security clearances.  

A.  Yes.  See Clause H. 3 CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL—

IDENTIFICATION, ONSITE REPORTING, AND CHECKOUT 
PROCEDURES (GSFC52.204‑99) (SEPT 2006) and Attachment K for 
clearance requirements.  


3.
Since Past Performance is significantly less then Mission Suitability why will the Government not consider evaluating the past performance of team members? 


A.  Past Performance of team members will be evaluated in accordance with M.6. Past Performance Evaluation Factor.


4.
This procurement has no engineering content.  Why is the size standard not $6.5M? 



A.
The Goddard Small Business Office has made a determination that NAICS 
Code 541330 with a size standard of $25M is applicable for all NASA 
Aerospace related requirements.  The PAAC III contract will support NASA 
Aerospace projects such as POES (Polar Operational Environmental Satellite 
Program), EOS (Earth Observing System), HST (Hubble Space Telescope),  
and JWST (James Web Space Telescope), so, NAICS Code 541330 with a 
size standard of $25M are applicable.  
5. What process will NASA use to evaluate proposal risk and performance risk?

A.  Proposal risk and performance risk are covered under Mission Suitability 
Factors:  Understanding the Requirements of the SOW, Management Plan, 
and Representative Task Orders (RTOs).

6. How will NASA use the Basis of Estimate in their evaluation?

A.
The Basis of Estimate for RTOs give the Government an understanding of 
costs proposed.


7. Will a copy of the presentation be made available?

A.
Yes

8. Will this be a multiple award IDIQ or a single award?

A.  It will be a single award contract.


9. Will a copy of the attendee list be made available?

A.
Yes, an attendee list will be posted.


10. Cost:  
(a)  What factors are used to evaluate the proposed cost realism?  
(b)  Is this primarily based on current salary (rates) of incumbents?

A.  (a)  In addition to the proposed skill mix (positions assigned and associated 


hours), the Government will look at all direct labor rates, indirect rates, 


and recurring ODCs, etc.

(b)
No, this is not just based on incumbent rates (see answer above,  (a)).

11. Government Estimates:
(a)
What are the total Labor hours given by the Government based on?
(b)
Is the skill mix of hours based on current run rates?

A.
(a) Hours are based on historical data and future projections.

(b) Once again, the skill mix of hours is based on historical data and future 


projections, not specifically on run rates.

12. Past Performance:
(a)
Will greater value be given to Larger (>$) contracts?
(b)
Will there be any points taken off for contracts <$3M?

A.
(a)
The Government is looking at relevance of contracts.  Relevance could 


relate to size of contracts and type of work.

(b)
No points are associated with past performance

13. Evaluation:
If  the current incumbent received a 100% rating on basically the same rating factors as the evaluation factors for this proposal, what is NASA looking for that would be better?  Cost?

A.
The evaluation is based on Mission Suitability, Cost, and Past Performance.  
See M.3 Source Selection and Evaluation Factor – General for additional 
information on evaluation factors.  If the reference to 100% is related to a 
Performance Evaluation Board (PEB) evaluation under a contract, then that 
type of information would be considered under Past Performance.  

14. How will the cost of a Joint Venture be presented to the SSA from the perspective of the members of the Jr and all Jr subcontractors to assure that the 8(a) sponsor gets 51% of the Total contract value (est. to be $200M)?

A.
Cost of a joint venture will be presented as shown in the Cost Model and will 
be shown like all other offers.  Any additional loadings must be shown.  As 
part of it’s evaluation the Government will examine the proposal to ensure 
that the prime contractor is performing 51% of the total effort.

15. How will the price evaluation team and the SEB Chair verify that the 8(a) sponsor of a Joint Venture will receive 51% of contract value and will comply with the CFR and the ostensible subcontractor rule?

A.
The Government will evaluate all proposals to ensure their technical approach 
is consistent with costs proposed and to validate there is not ostensible 
subcontracting involved.

16. In a Joint Venture bid will the Government require the official signed legal documents to be submitted?  If not how will NASA define the revenue split?

A.  The DRFP states ' Provide a copy of a SBA approved joint venture agreement 
compliant with 13 CFR 124.513, if applicable' in section L.12 Offer Volume. 

Title 13CFR 124.513 (e) states ' Prior approval by SBA. SBA must approve a 
joint venture agreement prior to the award of an 8(a) contract on behalf of the 
joint venture.'   Accordingly, NASA will require an SBA approved joint 
venture agreement prior to contract award.  The revenue split is defined by 
SBA in accordance with 13 CFR 124.513.

17. RTO
(a)
What basis is used to evaluate if the proposed skill mix and hours are correct?
(b)
Isn't this just an estimate of what the incumbent currently uses for similar 
tasks?

A.
(a)
The proposed skill mix and hours are evaluated by the source evaluation 


board based on the information set forth in the offeror's proposal.

(b)
No the RTOs were developed specifically for the DRFP and are not based 


on any specific actual tasks.

18. The RFP says that the contractor must have people offsite.  Are these just management and administrative support staff or does it include other staff?  If direct charge staff are located offsite – how many?

A.
There is no requirement for off-site space.  All work performed under this 
contract will be on-site.  This includes individuals performing under tasks and 
their managers.  Corporate staff would be located offsite.


19. Exhibit 1C is not addressed in Section L.  Is 1C a summary of just 1A (bid rates) or does it include 1B (ceiling rates) also?

A.
The RFP, Section L will be revised to address 1C.  The Exhibits will be 
revised to add 1C(i) Government Pricing Model Grand Total Summary – Bid 
Rates and 1C(ii) Government Pricing Model Grand Total Summary – Ceiling 
Rates.  

20. (a)  Is there a specific weighted breakdown for evaluation criteria?  For example, 
mission suitability is 60% and cost and past performance are 20% each.
(b)
What is the relationship and possible scope overlap with Guest and HOEST 
initiatives out of the CIO's office?
(c)
This is an IDIQ – will it be a single award or are multiple awards being 
considered?
(d)
Will desktop hardware and software also be provided by the Government for 

non-ODIN desktops/seats?

A.
(a) No there is no weighted breakdown.  

(b)
The CIO's office is working to define their requirements.  Accordingly any 

potential overlap is unknown at this time.  

(c)
It will be a single award contract

(d)
The Government will provide all property for this requirement.

21. Will you provide 533 data in the library?

A.  No, the 533 data is considered proprietary.

22. Do we get extra points for being Woman Owned Section 8(a)?

A.
Offerors must be 8(a);  no there are no additional points for Woman Owned

23. Your example Exhibit 1A shows 66% work by Prime, 33% work by Subs.  Do we have to keep the ration of Section 8(a) to non-Section 8(a) above 51%?  Subs can be 8(a)?

A.
The Prime Contractor must be an 8(a) and at least 50 percent of the cost of contract performance incurred for personnel shall be expended for employees for the concern  [prime 8(a) contractor].  There can also be subcontractors that are 8(a) firm, however, they cannot could towards the FAR 52.219-14 prime's at least 50 percent labor cost requirements.

24. Exhibit 2:  If we are proposing capturing a very large % of the incumbents;  and you are providing the average hourly rates for the incumbent employees;  how do we reflect that in these exhibits, versus providing actual rates for our employees in each category?

A.
Labor rates in each category will be the offerors own labor rates in instances 
where offerors intend to use their own workforce.  If an offeror intends to use 
incumbents, then the offeror will propose rates sufficient to capture 
incumbents and these rates will become your proposed rates.  In either case 
the rates are offeror developed rates.  


25. Could you address the use of offsite labor on both the current contract the and new one.  How do we address this in our cost exhibits?

A.
The current contract has limited offsite labor.  The follow-on will have no offsite labor.

26. Offsite facilities:  Is the offeror expected to provide off-site facilities for direct non-management personnel performing on the contract?  If yes, what percentage of the work will be performed offsite?

A.
No. Offerors  are not expected to provide off-site facilities for direct non-management personnel

27. (a)
Are the RTOs going to stay the same in the final RFP?
(b)
In providing a total compensation plan at the level required by the RFP there are normally a number of detailed tables relating to benefits and other aspects.  Putting these into slides would be 20 slides alone.  May we supply backup information as a handout?  How would it be counted?
(c)
Is there any chance that the Government will not have orals but will revert to a written response, given the widely-shared perception that orals favor the incumbent?
(d)
Given that the Government determines the budget available for a particular task would you consider supplying a bogey for the RTO tasking to determine the best mix and value of our staffing, rather then having us guess your typical budget?  Level playing field.
(e)
Are your slides all in 18 point?
(f)
Can you explain why the balance of scoring has gone from 250/750 tech to other 550/450 tech to other between PAAC II & III?
(g)
In the RTOs, the number of civil service personnel supposedly in the program office exceeds the total staffing for Code 400.  What does this number actually represent or is it wrong?
(h)
Should the task/plans entered for the entire period be stated for its performance on RTO 2 & 3?  
(i)
I the historic staffing in the library contract-wide or task-by-task by time?
(j)
What is your basis for cost comparison?
(k)
Can we show staffing by task in the library?

A.
(a)
The Government doesn't expect major changes to RTOs

(b)
Section L.11 Proposal Preparation – General Instructions (Oral and 


Written Proposals), Proposal Content and Page/Time Limitations (c) 


Written Documentation:  'Total Compensation Plan'  is excluded from 


Page/Time Limitations. The Total Compensation Plan is provided in 


writing, therefore, no additional handout may be supplied.     

(c)
This is new information to the Government.  If there is overwhelming 


feedback from the vendor community that oral presentations favor the 


incumbent the Government may re-evaluate this approach.  The 



Government considers our approach (oral presentations) to be "neutral", 


not favoring incumbents or non-incumbents.

(d)
The Government budget is not being provided as the Government will 


evaluate the offeror's assessment of the costs required to perform the 


effort.

(e)
In accordance with Section L.11 PROPOSAL PREPARATION—



GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS (ORAL and WRITTEN 


PROPOSALS), No chart text shall be smaller than 18 point

(f)
The Government looks at Mission Suitability scoring on its own merit for 


each procurement and determines the appropriate emphasis. 

(g)  The number of personnel in the RTOs is correct and they represent a 


composite of personnel from more then one Code.   

(h)
The period of performance stated in the RTOs is the period that should be 


reflected in the offerors response. 

(i)
There is no historic staffing in the Procurement Reference Library.  


Estimate hours for the current requirement are noted in Exhibits 1A and 


1B.

(j)
The Government will look at the specific technical approach and the Basis 

of Estimate and evaluate accordingly.  Your proposed cost will not 



necessarily mach the Governments estimate.

(k)
The Government will provide Task Statements of Work, but, not associated hours.  

28. (a)
Is there a one-for-one correspondence between the Government Position 
Descriptions (PDs) in this RFP, and the PDs in the current PAAC contract for 
which you are providing the average hourly rates?
(b)
If not, the data provided of only limited value.

A.
(a)
No there is not a one-for-one correspondence

(b)
The Government has provided the maximum information possible.

29. (a)
What CM tools are currently in use and will the be provided as GFE?
(b)
What scheduling tool is currently in use and will be provided as GFE?
(c)
Is the Government going to require offerors to have a "certified" EVMS
(d)
The plug number provided in the RTO's for ODC; travel; are these fully 
loaded (includes G&A)?

A.
(a)
Each project can use its own tool.  The Government will maintain control 


of  the CM tools which will be provided to the Contractor for use.

(b)
All projects scheduling tools are different and all will be provided

(c)
No certification on EVMS is required

(d)
They are unloaded.  The plug numbers are used for comparison purposes 


only.  

30. (a)
How many configuration items (H/W, S/W, F/W) are managed/controlled?
(b)
How many docs in the Library?
(c)
How many engineering drawings under control?

A.
(a)
Thousands are managed/controlled by each project.  There are 20-30 


projects.  The Contractor is responsible for the documentation;  not the 


H/W, S/W, or F/W. 

(b)
There are thousands of legacy documents, approximately 10,000

(c)
There are hundreds of engineering drawings for each project

31. (a)
Is Federal Past Performance being weighted more heavily than Commercial 
Past Performance?
(b)
Will GSFC center consider Open Source Software as a means to address 

Configuration Management solution?

A.
(a)
No Federal Past Performance is not weighted more heavily then 



Commercial Past Performance.  The Government is looking at the 



"relevancy" of the work involved.  A differentiation would be made 


between federal and commercial only to the extent that it has a bearing on 


the "relevancy" of the work.

(b)
Goddard will probably not consider Open Source Software as a solution

